
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Social Care & 
Housing 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

Date: Thursday, 17th June, 2004 

Time: 10.00 a.m. 

Place: Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, 
Hereford 

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of 
the meeting. 

For any further information please contact: 

Tim Brown, Members' Services, 
Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, Hereford. Tel 
01432 260239 

e-mail tbrown@herefordshire.gov.uk 

  
 
County of Herefordshire 
District Council 





COUNTY OF HEREFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 17TH JUNE, 2004 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
for the Meeting of the Social Care & Housing 
Scrutiny Committee 

 
To: Councillor Mrs. M.D. Lloyd-Hayes (Chairman) 

Councillor  Mrs. P.A. Andrews (Vice-Chairman) 
 
 Councillors Mrs. E.M. Bew, Mrs. A.E. Gray, K.G. Grumbley, Mrs. J.A. Hyde, 

R. Mills, Mrs. J.E. Pemberton, Ms. G.A. Powell and P.G. Turpin 
 

  
  
 Pages 
  

1. CHAIRMAN AND VICE-CHAIRMAN     

 To note that Councillor Mrs M.D. Lloyd-Hayes was appointed Chairman of 
the Committee and Councillor Mrs P.A. Andrews was appointed Vice-
Chairman of the Committee at the Annual Meeting of Council on 21st May, 
2004. 

 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE     

 To receive apologies for absence.  

3. NAMED SUBSTITUTES     

 To receive details of any Member nominated to attend the meeting in place 
of a Member of the Committee 

 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST     

 To receive any declarations of interest by Members in respect of items on 
this Agenda. 

 

5. MINUTES   1 - 6  

 To approve and sign the Minutes of the meeting held on 8th April, 2004.  

6. NATIONAL INSPECTION ARRANGEMENTS AND LOCAL 
PERFORMANCE   

7 - 8  

 To advise the Committee of national changes and give an update on local 
performance from recent external assessments and inspections. 

 

7. PERFORMANCE MONITORING 2003/04 - 12 MONTHLY REPORT   9 - 18  

 To report on the performance indicators position for the Social Care and 
Strategic Housing Directorate for the 12 months of 2003/4. 

 

8. SOCIAL SERVICES AND STRATEGIC HOUSING BUDGET 
MONITORING 2003/04 - 12 MONTHLY REPORT   

19 - 22  

 To inform the Committee of the provisional final outturn budget monitoring 
position for Social Care and Strategic Housing for the financial year 
2003/04. 
 
 

 



 

 

9. SCOPING WORK FOR IN-DEPTH INVESTIGATIONS INTO SERVICE 
AREAS   

23 - 26  

 To agree an exploratory programme for the in-depth investigations into the 
provision of home care and supported housing for people with mental 
health problems. 

 



PUBLIC INFORMATION 

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL'S SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 

The Council has established Scrutiny Committees for Education, 
Environment, Health, Social Care and Housing and Social and Economic 
Development.  A Strategic Monitoring Committee scrutinises Policy and 
Finance matters and co-ordinates the work of these Committees. 

The purpose of the Committees is to ensure the accountability and 
transparency of the Council's decision making process. 

The principal roles of Scrutiny Committees are to 
 
•  Help in developing Council policy 
 
• Probe, investigate, test the options and ask the difficult questions before 

and after decisions are taken 
 
• Look in more detail at areas of concern which may have been raised by 

the Cabinet itself, by other Councillors or by members of the public 
 
• "call in" decisions  - this is a statutory power which gives Scrutiny 

Committees the right to place a decision on hold pending further 
scrutiny. 

 
• Review performance of the Council 
 
• Conduct Best Value reviews  
 
• Undertake external scrutiny work engaging partners and the public  
 
Formal meetings of the Committees are held in public and information on 
your rights to attend meetings and access to information are set out 
overleaf 
 
 



The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at 
Meetings  
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO: - 
 
 
• Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the 

business to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information. 

• Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the 
meeting. 

• Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written 
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to 
six years following a meeting. 

• Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up 
to four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the background papers to a 
report is given at the end of each report).  A background paper is a document on 
which the officer has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available 
to the public. 

• Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all 
Councillors with details of the membership of Cabinet and of all Committees and 
Sub-Committees. 

• Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be 
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council, 
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated 
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title. 

• Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access, 
subject to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per 
agenda plus a nominal fee of £1.50 for postage). 

• Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of 
the Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy 
documents. 

 

 

 



 

Please Note: 

Agenda and individual reports can be made available in large 
print.  Please contact the officer named on the front cover of this 
agenda in advance of the meeting who will be pleased to deal 
with your request. 

The meeting venue is accessible for visitors in wheelchairs. 

A public telephone is available in the reception area. 
 
 
Public Transport Links 
 
 
• Public transport access can be gained to Brockington via the service runs 

approximately every half hour from the ‘Hopper’ bus station at the Tesco store in 
Bewell Street (next to the roundabout junction of Blueschool Street / Victoria Street / 
Edgar Street). 

• The nearest bus stop to Brockington is located in Old Eign Hill near to its junction 
with Hafod Road.  The return journey can be made from the same bus stop. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
If you have any questions about this agenda, how the Council works or would like more 
information or wish to exercise your rights to access the information described above, 
you may do so either by telephoning the officer named on the front cover of this agenda 
or by visiting in person during office hours (8.45 a.m. - 5.00 p.m. Monday - Thursday 
and 8.45 a.m. - 4.45 p.m. Friday) at the Council Offices, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, 
Hereford. 

 



 

COUNTY OF HEREFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 

BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD. 
 
 
 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 
 

 

In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring 
continuously. 

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through the 
nearest available fire exit. 

You should then proceed to Assembly Point J which is located at 
the southern entrance to the car park.  A check will be undertaken 
to ensure that those recorded as present have vacated the 
building following which further instructions will be given. 

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of 
the exits. 

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or returning 
to collect coats or other personal belongings. 
 
 



COUNTY OF HEREFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

MINUTES of the meeting of Social Care & Housing Scrutiny 
Committee held at Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, Hereford
on Thursday, 8th April, 2004 at 10.30 a.m. 

Present: Councillor Mrs. M.D. Lloyd-Hayes (Chairman) 
Councillor  Mrs. P.A. Andrews (Vice-Chairman) 

Councillors: Mrs. E.M. Bew, Mrs. A.E. Gray, K.G. Grumbley, 
Mrs. J.A. Hyde, R. Mills, Mrs. J.E. Pemberton and P.G. Turpin 

In attendance: Councillor Mrs. L.O. Barnett

51. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 Apologies were received from Councillor Ms G.A. Powell.

52. NAMED SUBSTITUTES  

 There were no named substitutes.

53. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 There were no declarations of interest.

54. MINUTES  

RESOLVED: That the Minutes of the meeting held on 27th January, 2004 be 
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 

55. SUPPORTING PEOPLE PROGRAMME  

 The Committee was informed of amended development priorities for the Supporting 
People Programme and associated issues. 

In January 2004 the Committee had been informed of the Audit Commission’s 
inspection of the Supporting People Programme in Herefordshire.   One of the 
Commission’s findings had been that the Council had identified too many priorities 
for the Programme.  The Committee had requested a report on this aspect and user 
feedback.

The report set out amended development priorities for the Programme, the 
Programme’s financial situation and processes in place to give feedback to service 
users and service providers. 

In presenting the report the Housing Strategy Manager drew attention to the Office of 
the Deputy Prime Minister’s adoption of the findings of an independent review of the 
national Programme.  One of these findings was that the programme was over-
funded due mainly to Local Authorities using the grant to fund non-eligible care 
services.  The review had found that this had happened in only a few authorities, 
Herefordshire Council not being one of them.  However, the ODPM had indicated 
that all local authorities could expect an adjustment in funding in 2005/2006.  This 
was in addition to the reduction in funding for 2004/2005 of 2.5 % and no uplift for 

AGENDA ITEM 5

1



SOCIAL CARE & HOUSING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE THURSDAY, 8TH APRIL, 2004 

inflation (a £562,000 reduction for the Council in 2004/2005). 

Representations had been made on behalf of the Council but it was estimated that 
the Council could expect to receive £6.9 million in 2005/2006 against an allocation 
which might otherwise have been expected to be £7.5 million. 

The report explained the basis on which revised aims for the programme had been 
set, placing them into three categories: High (statutory obligations), Medium (highly 
desirable ambitions determined locally), and Low (actions which the Council would 
want to take but might not achieve because of the focus on the higher priorities).  
Referring again to the uncertainties over the financial position of the programme the 
Housing Strategy Manager advised that the High and Medium aims could be met, as 
could the savings targets outlined in the report, and that the Programme was robust. 

In the course of discussion the following principal points were made: 

• The clarity of the report was welcomed. 

• In response to a question the Housing Strategy Manager commented that whilst, 
given the funding constraints, it would not be possible to realise all the objectives 
the Programme would make a significant contribution, freeing up resources for 
other services. 

• The proposal to deliver a pilot housing related support scheme for people having 
early signs of dementia or Alzheimer’s disease was explained. 

• The negotiations taking place with the numerous providers involved regarding the 
possible capping of hourly rates for housing related support and limiting the 
amount of care to a maximum of ten hours per person per week and the 
reasoning behind those discussions were noted.  It was acknowledged that some 
people were currently receiving more than ten hours support.  Current levels of 
support would be maintained until reviews had been completed.  At that stage 
consideration would need to be given by the Supporting People Commissioning 
Body to how any withdrawal of support should be managed. 

• It was confirmed that although there were quite a number of projects in the High 
Priority category these were capable of being delivered. 

• It was noted that some poorly performing or less strategically relevant services 
would need to be decommissioned more quickly than had been planned and 
acknowledged that Members needed to be informed when this was to occur. 

• It was confirmed that there were robust Service Level Agreements with Aspire 
and Mencap regarding their provision of services for people with learning 
disabilities.

• That the Supporting People Commissioning Body was responsible for allocating 
significant sums of money and there should therefore be some Member 
involvement in the process.  It was suggested that the Chairman of the Social 
Care and Housing Scrutiny Committee and the Cabinet Member (Social Care 
and Strategic Housing) should be involved.  In response to concerns that it would 
be inappropriate for the Chairman to participate in decision making in this context 
the Director advised that the involvement would not include any voting rights.  
The role in relation to the Commissioning Body would be the same as that 
carried out by non-executive Primary Care Trust Board Members and non-
executive board members of the National Offender Management Service.  This 

2



SOCIAL CARE & HOUSING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE THURSDAY, 8TH APRIL, 2004 

would fulfil the requirements of a Shadow Supporting People Commissioning 
body.

RESOLVED:
THAT (a) the amended priorities for the development of Supporting 

People Grant funded housing related support services, as set 
out in the report be noted; 

 (b) regular reports noting progress towards the Commissioning 
Body’s delivery of the prioritised schemes be made to the 
Committee;

  and 

 (c) it be requested that the Chairman of the Committee and, 
subject to her agreement, the Cabinet Member (Social Care 
and Strategic Housing) be invited to be involved in the 
considerations of the Supporting People Commissioning 
Body in a non-executive capacity in the same way as non-
executive Primary  Care Trust Board Members and non-
executive board members of the National Offender 
Management Service.

56. BEST VALUE REVIEW OF HEREFORDSHIRE ADOPTION AND FOSTERING 
SERVICES - UPDATE

 The Committee noted progress on the consultation process and development of the 
action plan for the Best Value Review of Herefordshire Adoption and Fostering 
Services.

It was reported that the timetable for the Best Value Review had been modified to 
take account of the requirement to produce an action plan in response to the 
inspection of the Fostering Service by the National Care Standards Commission.  
The inspection report was expected in April and the action plan would then be 
prepared and discussed with the Best Value Review team. 

RESOLVED: That the report be noted. 

57. BEST VALUE REVIEW OF PHYSICAL DISABILITY SERVICES - STAGE 1 
REPORT

 The Committee received a report outlining progress to date on the Best Value 
Review of Social Care Services for people with a physical disability. 

The detailed stage one report had been enclosed separately for Members of the 
Committee.

In the course of discussion it was requested that a briefing note on transport 
provision for service users should be circulated.

RESOLVED: That progress to date be noted and a briefing note circulated on 
  transport provision for service users. 

3



SOCIAL CARE & HOUSING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE THURSDAY, 8TH APRIL, 2004 

58. BUDGET/PERFORMANCE MONITORING 2003/04 - 10 MONTHLY REPORT  

 The Committee was informed of the position on budget monitoring and performance 
indicators for Social Care and Strategic Housing for the first ten months of the 
financial year 2003/2004. 

The Head of Business Services reported that, as she had previously advised the 
Committee, the childrens’ agency placement budget was particularly under pressure 
and since the last report 6 new placements had been necessary.  However, if it did 
not prove possible to balance the Social Care budget she expected that no more that 
1% would be carried forward as an overspend. 

The Director of Social Care and Strategic Housing commented that the Directorate 
as a whole had worked hard to balance the budget but reiterated that there had been 
some adverse effects on services.  The approach had, however, helped in 
presenting the Older Peoples Business case. 

The Head of Social Care (Adults) commented that services to older people had 
perhaps been most affected. There was a need to speed up the modernisation of 
these services.  This would, however, be likely to entail some instability in the short 
term.

In relation to performance monitoring it was noted that some factors were outside the 
Council’s control.  It was also the case that improvement against some indicators 
was almost wholly dependent on the availability of resources. 

RESOLVED: That the budget monitoring and performance monitoring report 
for the first ten months of the financial year be noted. 

59. WORK PROGRAMME  

 The Committee considered issues for inclusion in its work programme following a 
scoping day to identify topics for in-depth review in respect of services for older 
people, childrens services, and Mental Health. 

The provision of home care and supported housing for vulnerable people had been 
identified as preferred areas for review.  An aspect of Children’s Services had also 
been identified.  However, given the provisions in the Children’s Services Bill it was 
suggested that this work should not proceed at the moment and Members of the 
Children’s Services Task Group invited instead to participate in the work of either of 
the other Task Groups. 

RESOLVED:

That  (a) scoping studies be prepared for the investigations into the 
provision of home care and supported housing for people with 
mental health problems and reported back to the Committee for 
approval;

(b) that the investigation into joint working in delivering Children’s 
services be deferred pending enactment of the Children’s 
Services Bill and receipt of relevant guidance; 

4



SOCIAL CARE & HOUSING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE THURSDAY, 8TH APRIL, 2004 

(c) Members of the Childrens Services Task Group be invited to 
participate in the work of either of the other Task Groups, and 
the arrangements for the involvement of the voluntary sector 
and others be noted; 

 and 

(d) the work programme as appended to the report be approved 
subject to review at the next meeting. 

The meeting ended at 12.25 p.m. CHAIRMAN

5



6



SOCIAL CARE AND HOUSING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 17TH JUNE, 2004 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Sue Fiennes, Director of Social Care and 
Strategic Housing on 01432 260039 

 
 

170604NATIONALINSPECTIONARRANGEMENTSANDLOCALPERFORMANCE0.doc  

 NATIONAL INSPECTION ARRANGEMENTS AND 
LOCAL PERFORMANCE 

Report By: Director of Social Care and Strategic Housing 
 

Wards Affected 

 County-wide 

Purpose 

1. To advise the Committee of national changes and give an update on local 
performance from recent external assessments and inspections. 

Financial Implications 

2. There are no financial implications in this report. 

Social Care 

3. The national body for Social Care Inspection is now the Commission for Social Care 
Inspection (CSCI) as of 1st April, 2004.  It is a new organisation and has integrated 
the former Social Services Inspectorate (SSI), the National Care Standards 
Commission (NCSC) and the Joint Review programme from the Audit Commission 
(AC) and SSI. 

4. The CSCI has a regional structure which for Herefordshire is the West Midlands and 
a new role for managing regulation and performance locally.  This is the Business 
Relationship Manager (BRM).  The BRM covering regulation teams and local 
authority performance in Herefordshire and Worcestershire is Lynnette Ranson. 

5. The Directorate met with the BRM and Interim Regional Director early in May to 
transfer the work from SSI and to set the scene for the Annual Review Meeting of 
Performance in July 2004. 

6. The BRM is the fifth inspector linking to Herefordshire for this purpose since 2002. 

7. It is anticipated the BRM will assist Herefordshire Council in co-ordinating inspection 
work in the future and also ensuring the inspection work is proportionate to the local 
performance and improvement. 

8. In March 2004, Herefordshire had 2 inspections - Older People's Services via SSI 
and Fostering Services via NCSC. 

9. The draft reports were due at the end of April 2004.  The Older People's Services 
draft report has just been received; the Fostering report has not yet been received.  
An update on the position can be given to the Committee at the meeting. 

10. The ARM takes account of these reports and the Social Care Delivery and 
Improvement Statement (DIS) for May 2004 and builds a performance picture and 

AGENDA ITEM 6

7



SOCIAL CARE AND HOUSING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 17TH JUNE, 2004 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Sue Fiennes, Director of Social Care and 
Strategic Housing on 01432 260039 

 
 

170604NATIONALINSPECTIONARRANGEMENTSANDLOCALPERFORMANCE0.doc  

evidence base for the STAR rating for Autumn 2004 which combines how well 
Herefordshire is performing with the likely capacity for improvement. 

Strategic Housing 

11. The AC alongside Government Office for the West Midlands (GOWM) oversees the 
strategic inspectorate and performance activity and increasingly this also links to the 
Office of the Deputy Prime Minister (ODPM). 

12. The Supporting People Inspection in Herefordshire included the involvement of 
several inspectorates due to the Partnership arrangements. 

13. The outcome of the Supporting People Inspection 2003 was reported to this 
Committee in January 2004. 

14. The Strategic Housing agenda more widely does not yet fit into a comprehensive 
external inspection and performance framework. 

15. The last inspection in Herefordshire was in 2001. 

16. In order to update the position for 2004 and the Comprehensive Performance 
Assessment (CPA) housing score, Herefordshire Council has in March, April and 
early May been required to do a self-assessment of Strategic Housing performance 
and capacity for improvement.  This was an extensive piece of work and was 
followed up by an inspection site visit for a day. 

17. The outcome of this assessment is awaited and an update can be given to the 
Committee at the meeting. 

18. The Directorate has received 4 inspections in 6 months alongside its routine activity 
and follow-up on previous improvement action plans, alongside the routine 
performance reporting to this Committee. 

19. The Council's performance management framework is now building up and 
Directorate Service Plans for 2004-05 will be reviewed in July by the Corporate 
Performance Group. 

20. The Directorate does, therefore, have a solid approach to performance management 
from its experience and scrutiny. 

21. The concentration on delivering the outcomes and improvements has to be found 
within these local council-wide and external arrangements. 

RECOMMENDATION 

THAT the report be noted. 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

• None identified. 

8



SOCIAL CARE AND HOUSING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE   17TH JUNE, 2004
  

Further information on the subject of this report is available from  
David Mitchell, Information Systems Manager on 01432 260742 or Sue Alexander, Head of Business 

Services on 01432 260069 
 

performancemonitoring1706040.doc  

 PERFORMANCE MONITORING 2003/04 – 12 MONTHLY 
REPORT 

Report By: Head of Business Services 
 

(A short presentation on performance management processes will also be made to 
the meeting) 

Wards Affected 

 County-wide 

Purpose 

1. To report on the performance indicators position for the Social Care and Strategic 
Housing Directorate for the 12 months of 2003/4.  

Financial Implications 

2. No direct implications however, top performing authorities will be rewarded by the 
relaxation of government grant conditions. 

Background 

3. The Performance Management Framework of the Council requires regular reporting 
to Scrutiny Committees.  This report covers the position for the 12 months of 
2003/04. This is the provisional position as some information, measured in 
conjunction with health colleagues, is to be confirmed. 

4. As outlined in previous reports to this Committee, the Department of Health (DH) 
publishes statistical information on the performance of all Social Services 
Departments. There is a national set of 50 indicators covering the two service 
groups, Adult Services and Children’s Services. The DH ranks performance in five 
bands ranging from Band 1 - ‘investigate urgently’ to Band 5 - ‘very good’. 

5. Strategic Housing performance in monitored by Best Value indicators and regularly 
reported to the Government Office of the West Midlands and the Office of the Deputy 
Prime Minister. 

6. There will be a short presentation to the meeting of how the performance 
management processes work in practice. 

Social Care 

7. Overall performance for the Directorate for the year continues to improve. Of the 50 
indicators used to assess the performance of the Directorate only 1 is in band 1 – 
“investigate urgently” and 15 appear in the top 2 bands. The detail of the 
performance is given in the attached appendix. 

 

AGENDA ITEM 7

9



SOCIAL CARE AND HOUSING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE   17TH JUNE, 2004
  

Further information on the subject of this report is available from  
David Mitchell, Information Systems Manager on 01432 260742 or Sue Alexander, Head of Business 

Services on 01432 260069 
 

performancemonitoring1706040.doc  

8. The indicator that appears in the “ investigate urgently” category is that relating to 
community equipment. This indicator is one which has been highlighted in previous 
reports and has been changed this year. The “ banding” levels have not yet been 
confirmed but our assessment is that we will need to investigate urgently to improve 
our performance in this area,. One particular change that has affected most indicator 
measurements was the issuing of new estimated population figures by the (DH) late 
in the year. The assumption has been made for performance scoring that the bands 
set for last year will be broadly the same again this year 

9. The Delivery and Improvement Statement was sent to the Department of Health on 
1st June 2004 and includes all the targets and a commentary on performance for 
2003/04 and targets for 2004/05. The Annual Review meeting of Performance with 
the Commission for Social Care Inspection (CSCI) will take place in July 2004.   

10. The emphasis of the Department of Health (DH) in performance measurements is 
changing from one based mainly on activity to one where outcomes for improvement 
in service users’ life prospects are assessed.  To this end 5 of the indicators have 
been significantly revised and therefore have no bandings yet allocated to them. 

Strategic Housing  

11. The detail of the housing indicators is shown in the attached appendix, including a 
commentary. The outturn assessment of performance indicates that performance has 
exceeded targets in two of the four Best Value performance indicator areas. 

12. The main area of risk relates to BV183B (the average length of stay of households 
that include dependent children in hostel accommodation). The Council’s main focus 
is on avoiding the use of bed and breakfast accommodation and improving the 
quality of hostel accommodation.  The shortage of affordable housing makes this 
area challenging but new hostel accommodation is expected to come on line over the 
next 2 years, which will have a positive impact. 

 Local Public Service Agreements (LPSA) 

13. Seven of the performance indicators shown in the appendices are used in the 
assessment of the Council in meeting its LPSA targets.  

• Target 1  Enabling older people to live as independently as possible in the 
community –by providing community services. 
Indicators B11, C28, C32 and C33 are used as a measure of the Council’s 
improvement in this target. 

• Target  5  Improving the life chances of children in care by increasing the 
adoption rate. 
Indicator C23 is used as a measure of the Council’s improvement in this target. 

• Target 6   Improving life chances for children in care by improving their 
educational attainment 
Indicators A4 and C24  are used as a measure of the Council’s improvement in 
this target. 

 

10



SOCIAL CARE AND HOUSING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE   17TH JUNE, 2004
  

Further information on the subject of this report is available from  
David Mitchell, Information Systems Manager on 01432 260742 or Sue Alexander, Head of Business 

Services on 01432 260069 
 

performancemonitoring1706040.doc  

14. Each of the targets has improved during the period of the LPSA although they have 
proven to be challenging.  One of the difficulties which has arisen during the period of 
the agreement has been the redefinition of the client group included in some of the 
indicators. This has lead the Directorate to engage in discussions with the Social 
Services Inspectors in how to ensure that improvements that have been achieved are 
correctly represented in the performance indicators. 

 RECOMMENDATION 

THAT  (a)  the report on Herefordshire Social Care and Strategic Housing 
performance be noted 

  and 

(b) areas of concern continue to be monitored. 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

• None 

11



12



PA
F 

A
re

a
20

02
/0

3 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
B

an
d 

20
02

/0
3

20
03

/0
4 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

B
an

d 
20

03
/0

4

PA
F

B
V

PI
L

PS
A

A
1

49
St

ab
ili

ty
 o

f p
la

ce
m

en
ts

 o
f c

hi
ld

re
n 

lo
ok

ed
 a

ft
er

10
5

☺
9

5
☺

A
2

50
E

du
ca

tio
na

l q
ua

lif
ic

at
io

ns
 o

f c
hi

ld
re

n 
lo

ok
ed

 a
ft

er
 [j

oi
nt

 w
or

ki
ng

] 
65

4
☺

52
4

☺

A
3

R
e-

re
gi

st
ra

tio
ns

 o
n 

th
e 

C
hi

ld
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
R

eg
is

te
r

36
1

21
2

A
4

16
1

E
m

pl
oy

m
en

t, 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

&
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 fo

r 
ca

re
 le

av
er

s [
jo

in
t w

or
ki

ng
]

76
5

☺
69

5
☺

B
7

C
hi

ld
re

n 
lo

ok
ed

 a
ft

er
 in

 fo
st

er
 p

la
ce

m
en

ts
 o

r 
pl

ac
ed

 fo
r 

ad
op

tio
n

90
4

☺
93

4
☺

B
8

51
C

os
t o

f s
er

vi
ce

s f
or

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
lo

ok
ed

 a
ft

er
 *

41
7

4
☺

42
8

4
☺

B
9

U
ni

t c
os

t o
f c

hi
ld

re
n'

s r
es

id
en

tia
l c

ar
e 

*
23

28
2

28
39

2

B
10

U
ni

t c
os

t o
f f

os
te

r 
ca

re
 *

22
7

4
☺

22
0

4
☺

C
18

Fi
na

l w
ar

ni
ng

s/
re

pr
im

an
ds

 a
nd

 c
on

vi
ct

io
ns

 o
f c

hi
ld

re
n 

lo
ok

ed
 a

ft
er

2.
1

3
2.

1
3

C
19

H
ea

lth
 o

f c
hi

ld
re

n 
lo

ok
ed

 a
ft

er
88

5
☺

87
5

☺

C
20

16
2

R
ev

ie
w

s o
f c

hi
ld

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

ca
se

s
10

0
5

☺
10

0
5

☺

C
21

D
ur

at
io

n 
on

 th
e 

ch
ild

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

re
gi

st
er

**
4

☺
**

4
☺

C
22

Y
ou

ng
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

lo
ok

ed
 a

ft
er

 in
 fo

st
er

 p
la

ce
m

en
ts

 o
r 

pl
ac

ed
 fo

r 
ad

op
tio

n
97

4
☺

10
0

5
☺

C
23

16
3

A
do

pt
io

ns
 o

f c
hi

ld
re

n 
lo

ok
ed

 a
ft

er
 

6.
4

3
4.

9
2

C
24

C
hi

ld
re

n 
lo

ok
ed

 a
ft

er
 a

bs
en

t f
ro

m
 sc

ho
ol

 [j
oi

nt
 w

or
ki

ng
]

6
4

☺
12

3
D

. Q
ua

lit
y 

of
 S

er
vi

ce
s f

or
 

U
se

rs
 a

nd
 C

ar
er

s
D

35
L

on
g 

te
rm

 st
ab

ili
ty

 o
f c

hi
ld

re
n 

lo
ok

ed
 a

ft
er

58
3

50
3

E
44

R
el

at
iv

e 
sp

en
d 

on
 fa

m
ily

 su
pp

or
t

35
4

☺
39

4
☺

E
45

E
th

ni
ci

ty
 o

f c
hi

ld
re

n 
in

 n
ee

d
2.

71
2

**
*

**
* 

B
i-a

nn
ua

l d
at

a 
on

ly

SE
R

V
IC

E
 A

R
E

A
: C

H
IL

D
R

E
N

 A
N

D
 F

A
M

IL
IE

S 
(C

F)
 (2

00
3 

/ 2
00

4)

In
di

ca
to

r

C
. E

ff
ec

tiv
en

es
s o

f S
er

vi
ce

 
D

el
iv

er
y 

an
d 

O
ut

co
m

es

E
. F

ai
r 

A
cc

es
s

Fo
r 

in
di

ca
to

rs
 B

8-
B

10
, C

21
 a

nd
 E

44
 b

es
t p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 is

 b
an

d 
4,

 n
ot

 5

A
. N

at
io

na
l P

ri
or

iti
es

 a
nd

 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

O
bj

ec
tiv

es

B
. C

os
t a

nd
 E

ff
ic

ie
nc

y

* 
D

ef
in

iti
on

 c
ha

ng
ed

 2
00

0/
01

. P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 is
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

ne
w

 d
ef

in
iti

on
**

 T
hi

s v
al

ue
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

su
pp

re
ss

ed
 - 

in
di

ca
to

rs
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

sm
al

l n
um

be
rs

 a
re

 p
ot

en
tia

lly
 u

nr
el

ia
bl

e 
an

d 
m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 th
e 

di
sc

lo
su

re
 o

f i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
ab

ou
t i

nd
iv

id
ua

ls

13



14



PA
F

B
V

PI
L

PS
A

20
02

/0
3 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

B
an

d 
20

02
/0

3
20

03
/0

4 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
B

an
d 

20
03

/0
4

A
5

E
m

er
ge

nc
y 

ad
m

is
si

on
s [

in
te

rf
ac

e]
11

.2
5

☺
H

A
6

E
m

er
ge

nc
y 

ps
yc

hi
at

ri
c 

re
-a

dm
is

si
on

s [
in

te
rf

ac
e]

12
.6

2
H

B
11

In
te

ns
iv

e 
ho

m
e 

ca
re

 a
s a

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 in

te
ns

iv
e 

ho
m

e 
an

d 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l c
ar

e
13

2
16

2

B
12

52
C

os
t o

f i
nt

en
si

ve
 so

ci
al

 c
ar

e 
fo

r 
ad

ul
ts

 a
nd

 o
ld

er
 p

eo
pl

e 
*

43
5

2
41

6
2

B
13

U
ni

t c
os

t o
f r

es
id

en
tia

l a
nd

 n
ur

si
ng

 c
ar

e 
fo

r 
ol

de
r 

pe
op

le
 *

34
7

3
33

8
3

B
14

U
ni

t c
os

t o
f r

es
id

en
tia

l a
nd

 n
ur

si
ng

 c
ar

e 
fo

r 
ad

ul
ts

 w
ith

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s *

49
0

4
☺

51
4

4
☺

B
15

U
ni

t c
os

t o
f r

es
id

en
tia

l a
nd

 n
ur

si
ng

 c
ar

e 
fo

r 
ad

ul
ts

 w
ith

 m
en

ta
l i

lln
es

s *
38

9
3

46
0

3

B
16

U
ni

t c
os

t o
f r

es
id

en
tia

l a
nd

 n
ur

si
ng

 c
ar

e 
fo

r 
ad

ul
ts

 w
ith

 p
hy

si
ca

l d
is

ab
ili

tie
s *

75
5

2
61

6
2

B
17

U
ni

t c
os

t o
f h

om
e 

ca
re

 fo
r 

ad
ul

ts
 a

nd
 o

ld
er

 p
eo

pl
e

18
.5

2
17

.8
2

C
26

A
dm

is
si

on
s o

f s
up

po
rt

ed
 r

es
id

en
ts

 a
ge

d 
65

 o
r 

ov
er

 to
 r

es
id

en
tia

l/n
ur

si
ng

 c
ar

e
68

4
☺

70
4

☺

C
27

A
dm

is
si

on
s o

f s
up

po
rt

ed
 r

es
id

en
ts

 a
ge

d 
18

-6
4 

to
 r

es
id

en
tia

l/n
ur

si
ng

 c
ar

e
2.

1
4

☺
2.

0
4

☺

C
28

53
In

te
ns

iv
e 

ho
m

e 
ca

re
 

4.
0

2
5.

9
2

C
29

A
du

lts
 w

ith
 p

hy
si

ca
l d

is
ab

ili
tie

s h
el

pe
d 

to
 li

ve
 a

t h
om

e
3.

4
3

4.
3

4
☺

C
30

A
du

lts
 w

ith
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s h
el

pe
d 

to
 li

ve
 a

t h
om

e
2.

5
4

☺
2.

2
3

C
31

A
du

lts
 w

ith
 m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 p

ro
bl

em
s h

el
pe

d 
to

 li
ve

 a
t h

om
e

1.
5

3
1.

7
3

C
32

54
O

ld
er

 p
eo

pl
e 

he
lp

ed
 to

 li
ve

 a
t h

om
e 

78
2

84
3

C
33

A
vo

id
ab

le
 h

ar
m

 fo
r 

ol
de

r 
pe

op
le

 (f
al

ls
 a

nd
 h

yp
ot

he
rm

ia
)

23
3

H

C
51

D
ir

ec
t p

ay
m

en
ts

35
3

51
3

D
37

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y 

of
 si

ng
le

 r
oo

m
s

86
3

83
2

D
38

56
%

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t a

nd
 a

da
pt

at
io

ns
 c

os
tin

g 
le

ss
 th

an
 £

10
00

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 w

ith
in

 3
 w

ee
ks

 
95

4
☺

77
1

D
39

58
%

 o
f p

eo
pl

e 
re

ce
iv

in
g 

a 
st

at
em

en
t o

f t
he

ir
 n

ee
ds

 a
nd

 h
ow

 th
ey

 w
ill

 b
e 

m
et

73
1

85
2

D
40

55
C

lie
nt

s r
ec

ei
vi

ng
 a

 r
ev

ie
w

30
2

50
2

D
41

D
el

ay
ed

 tr
an

sf
er

s o
f c

ar
e 

[in
te

rf
ac

e]
 *

*
60

3
H

D
42

C
ar

er
 a

ss
es

sm
en

ts
6

2
23

3

D
55

19
5

A
cc

ep
ta

bl
e 

w
ai

tin
g 

tim
e 

fo
r 

as
se

ss
m

en
t

70

A
. N

at
io

na
l P

ri
or

iti
es

 a
nd

 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

O
bj

ec
tiv

es

B
. C

os
t a

nd
 E

ff
ic

ie
nc

y

SE
R

V
IC

E
 A

R
E

A
: A

D
U

L
T

S 
A

N
D

 O
L

D
E

R
 P

E
O

PL
E

S 
(A

O
) (

20
03

 / 
20

04
)

In
di

ca
to

r
Pa

f A
re

a

C
. E

ff
ec

tiv
en

es
s o

f S
er

vi
ce

 
D

el
iv

er
y 

an
d 

O
ut

co
m

es

D
. Q

ua
lit

y 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

s f
or

 
U

se
rs

 a
nd

 C
ar

er
s

15



PA
F

B
V

PI
L

PS
A

20
02

/0
3 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

B
an

d 
20

02
/0

3
20

03
/0

4 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
B

an
d 

20
03

/0
4

SE
R

V
IC

E
 A

R
E

A
: A

D
U

L
T

S 
A

N
D

 O
L

D
E

R
 P

E
O

PL
E

S 
(A

O
) (

20
03

 / 
20

04
)

In
di

ca
to

r
Pa

f A
re

a

D
56

19
6

A
cc

ep
ta

bl
e 

w
ai

tin
g 

tim
e 

fo
r 

ca
re

 p
ac

ka
ge

s
71

D
57

 1
82

U
se

rs
 w

ho
 w

er
e 

ve
ry

 o
r 

ex
tr

em
el

y 
sa

tis
fie

d 
w

ith
 so

ci
al

 se
rv

ic
es

 *
**

19

D
58

19
0

U
se

rs
 th

at
 a

sk
ed

 fo
r 

ch
an

ge
s t

o 
so

ci
al

 se
rv

ic
es

 w
ho

 w
er

e 
sa

tis
fie

d 
w

ith
 th

os
e 

ch
an

ge
s *

**
81

E
47

E
th

ni
ci

ty
 o

f o
ld

er
 p

eo
pl

e 
re

ce
iv

in
g 

as
se

ss
m

en
t *

**
*

2
0.

98
2

E
48

E
th

ni
ci

ty
 o

f o
ld

er
 p

eo
pl

e 
re

ce
iv

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
an

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t *

**
*

2
2

E
61

A
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 o
f o

ld
er

 p
eo

pl
e 

45

E
50

A
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 o
f a

du
lts

 a
nd

 o
ld

er
 p

eo
pl

e 
le

ad
in

g 
to

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

71
4

☺
45

3

E
. F

ai
r 

A
cc

es
s

**
* 

B
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
20

02
/0

3 
PS

S 
E

ld
er

ly
 H

om
e 

C
ar

e 
U

se
r 

E
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

Su
rv

ey
 - 

no
 p

re
vi

ou
s d

at
a 

to
 c

om
pa

re
**

**
 T

hi
s v

al
ue

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
su

pp
re

ss
ed

 - 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
sm

al
l n

um
be

rs
 a

re
 p

ot
en

tia
lly

 u
nr

el
ia

bl
e 

an
d 

m
ay

 le
ad

 to
 th

e 
di

sc
lo

su
re

 o
f i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t i
nd

iv
id

ua
ls

H
 - 

M
ea

su
re

d 
by

 H
ea

lth
* 

D
ef

in
iti

on
 c

ha
ng

ed
 2

00
0/

01
. P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
ne

w
 d

ef
in

iti
on

**
 T

hi
s i

s a
 n

ew
 in

di
ca

to
r 

fo
r 

20
02

/0
3

16



 
H

O
U

SI
N

G
 P

ER
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

IN
D

IC
A

TO
R

S 
20

03
 - 

20
04

 
  

 
   

   
 A

ct
ua

l P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
 

B
VP

I 
 

O
ut

-tu
rn

 
20

01
/2

00
2 

 
O

ut
-tu

rn
 

20
02

/2
00

3 

 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

03
/2

00
4 

Q
1 

Q
2 

Q
3 

Q
4 

  
 

Ex
pl

an
at

io
n 

of
 ta

rg
et

 
 

C
om

m
en

ta
ry

 o
n 

pr
og

re
ss

 
to

w
ar

ds
 ta

rg
et

 

 

0.
49

 

 

 

1.
17

 

 

1.
75

 

 

2.
60

 

B
V6

2:
   

 

Th
e 

pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 u
nf

it 
pr

iv
at

e 
se

ct
or

 d
w

el
lin

gs
 

m
ad

e 
fit

 o
r d

em
ol

is
he

d 
as

 
a 

di
re

ct
 re

su
lt 

of
 a

ct
io

n 
by

 
th

e 
LA

 

 

1.
27

%
 

 

1.
62

%
 

 

3%
 

A
nn

ua
l o

ut
-tu

rn
  =

  2
.6

0%
 

   

U
nd

er
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

lit
er

at
ur

e 
fro

m
 

th
e 

O
D

P
M

, t
he

 d
en

om
in

at
or

 
ha

s 
ch

an
ge

d 
to

 3
65

0 
as

 
bo

rd
er

-li
ne

 “u
nf

it”
 p

ro
pe

rti
es

 
ar

e 
no

 lo
ng

er
 in

cl
ud

ed
.  

A
s 

a 
re

su
lt,

 th
e 

ta
rg

et
 %

 h
as

 
in

cr
ea

se
d.

 

D
el

ay
s 

ca
us

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
ne

w
 

H
ou

si
ng

 R
en

ew
al

 P
ol

ic
y,

 
al

so
 th

er
e 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
di

ffi
cu

lti
es

 in
 o

bt
ai

ni
ng

 
su

ita
bl

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
or

s 
to

 
ac

hi
ev

e 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
of

 th
e 

w
or

ks
. 

 13
  

 12
 

 13
 

 4 

B
V6

4:
 

Th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f p
riv

at
e 

se
ct

or
 d

w
el

lin
gs

 th
at

 a
re

 
re

tu
rn

ed
 to

 o
cc

up
at

io
n 

or
 

de
m

ol
is

he
d 

as
 a

 re
su

lt 
of

 
ac

tio
n 

by
 th

e 
LA

 

  

 

 64
 

 30
 

A
nn

ua
l o

ut
-tu

rn
  =

  4
2 

   ☺
 

Th
e 

em
pt

y 
pr

op
er

ty
 s

tra
te

gy
 

ha
s 

gr
ea

te
r e

m
ph

as
is

 o
n 

ta
rg

et
in

g 
lo

ng
-te

rm
 e

m
pt

y 
 

pr
op

er
tie

s 
ba

ck
 in

to
 u

se
.  

M
or

e 
co

m
pl

ex
 is

su
es

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

re
so

lv
ed

 o
ve

r a
 lo

ng
er

 p
er

io
d 

of
 ti

m
e.

  I
t i

s 
lik

el
y 

fo
r t

he
 fi

rs
t 

ye
ar

 o
f i

m
pl

em
en

tin
g 

th
e 

st
ra

te
gy

 th
at

 fe
w

 p
ro

pe
rti

es
 

in
iti

al
ly

 w
ill

 b
e 

br
ou

gh
t b

ac
k 

in
to

 u
se

. 

Th
e 

ta
rg

et
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

ex
ce

ed
ed

 d
ue

 to
 s

ev
er

al
 

si
ng

le
 lo

ng
-te

rm
 e

m
pt

y 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

be
in

g 
co

nv
er

te
d 

in
to

 a
 n

um
be

r o
f s

el
f-

co
nt

ai
ne

d 
un

its
. 

 

5.
3 

 

4.
8 

 

5.
3 

 

4.
2 

B
V1

83
 a

: 

Th
e 

av
er

ag
e 

le
ng

th
 o

f 
st

ay
 o

f h
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

th
at

 
in

cl
ud

e 
de

pe
nd

en
t 

ch
ild

re
n/

pr
eg

na
nt

 w
om

en
  

in
 b

ed
 a

nd
 b

re
ak

fa
st

 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 

 

   

 

8 
w

ee
ks

 

 

6 
w

ee
ks

 

A
nn

ua
l o

ut
-tu

rn
 =

  

 5
 w

ee
ks

 

   ☺
 

Th
e 

ta
rg

et
 fo

r 2
00

3/
04

 w
as

 
ba

se
d 

on
 a

 d
et

er
m

in
at

io
n 

to
 

im
pr

ov
e 

on
 o

ut
tu

rn
 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 fr

om
 th

e 
02

/0
3 

fin
an

ci
al

 y
ea

r, 
an

d 
ba

se
d 

al
so

 
on

 th
e 

pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

re
su

lts
 fr

om
 

th
e 

H
om

eP
oi

nt
 a

ge
nc

y 
w

hi
ch

 
at

 th
e 

tim
e 

se
em

ed
 to

 b
e 

le
ad

in
g 

to
 a

 fa
st

er
 tu

rn
ov

er
 o

f 
te

m
po

ra
ry

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n.

 

Th
e 

re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 th
e 

B
&

B
 

fig
ur

e 
w

as
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

w
ith

 
th

e 
w

or
k 

th
at

 to
ok

 p
la

ce
 

pr
io

r t
o 

A
pr

il 
1 

20
04

, w
he

n 
th

e 
S

ui
ta

bi
lit

y 
of

 
A

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
O

rd
er

 
20

04
 c

am
e 

in
to

 fo
rc

e.
  T

hi
s 

fig
ur

e 
sh

ou
ld

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 

re
du

ce
. 

17



 
H

O
U

SI
N

G
 P

ER
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

IN
D

IC
A

TO
R

S 
 

 
  A

C
TU

A
L 

PE
R

FO
R

M
A

N
C

E 
 

B
es

t V
al

ue
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

In
di

ca
to

rs
 

 
O

ut
-tu

rn
 

20
01

/2
00

2 

 
O

ut
-tu

rn
 

20
02

/2
00

3 

 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

03
/2

00
4 

Q
1 

Q
2 

Q
3 

Q
4 

 
 

Ex
pl

an
at

io
n 

of
 ta

rg
et

 
 

C
om

m
en

ta
ry

 o
n 

pr
og

re
ss

 
to

w
ar

ds
 ta

rg
et

 

 29
  

 4 

 

16
.5

 

 

5.
7 

B
V1

83
 b

: 

Th
e 

av
er

ag
e 

le
ng

th
 o

f 
st

ay
 o

f h
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

th
at

 
in

cl
ud

e 
de

pe
nd

en
t 

ch
ild

re
n 

in
 h

os
te

l 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 

  

 

14
 w

ee
ks

 

 

12
 w

ee
ks

 

A
nn

ua
l o

ut
-tu

rn
  =

   

13
 w

ee
ks

 

    

A
s 

ab
ov

e.
 

Th
e 

sl
ig

ht
 re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 a

ve
ra

ge
 

le
ng

th
 o

f s
ta

y 
is

 d
ue

 to
 fe

w
er

 
fa

m
ili

es
 b

ei
ng

 p
la

ce
d 

in
 

ho
st

el
s,

 a
nd

 a
 p

ol
ic

y 
of

 m
ov

in
g 

fa
m

ili
es

 to
 J

ub
ile

e 
C

ou
rt 

as
 

so
on

 a
s 

po
ss

ib
le

.  
 

  18



 
SOCIAL CARE AND HOUSING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE       17TH JUNE, 2004  

Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Sue Alexander Head of Business Services on 01432 260069  

or Anne Silley, Finance Manager on 01432 260545 
   
 

 

 SOCIAL SERVICES AND STRATEGIC HOUSING 
BUDGET MONITORING 2003/04 – 12 MONTHLY 
REPORT 

Report By: Head of Business Services 
 
 

Wards Affected 

 County-wide 

Purpose 

1. To inform the Committee of the provisional final outturn budget monitoring 
position for Social Care and Strategic Housing for the financial year 2003/04. 

Financial Implications 

2. As detailed within the report. 

Background 

3. Following the Council’s Performance Management Framework, budget 
monitoring reports should be made regularly to relevant Scrutiny Committees. 
This is the final budget monitoring report for the financial year 2003/04.  

Social Services Budget 2003/04 

4. The budget for the financial year 2003/04 was set by Council on 7th March 2003. 
Additional resources of £1.3million were allocated to the Social Care programme 
area, with £300,000 of the £1.3million specifically to be used for the purpose of 
addressing difficulties with delayed discharges. 

5. In summary, after allowing for inflation the total budget available for Social care in 
2003/04 was as follows: 

          £ 

Base budget  (after inflation)      31,962,950 

Growth allocated         1,300,000 

Total budget Social Care      33,262,950 

6. On 10th July, 2003 Cabinet noted the final revenue outturn report for the financial 
year 2002/03.  Cabinet endorsed that the overspend on Social Care in excess of 

AGENDA ITEM 8

19



 
SOCIAL CARE AND HOUSING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE       17TH JUNE, 2004  

Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Sue Alexander Head of Business Services on 01432 260069  

or Anne Silley, Finance Manager on 01432 260545 
   
 

 

the 2% permitted under the Council’s Financial Standing Orders would be met 
from reserves. This then meant that the overspend carried forward to the 
2003/04 budget was £582,000.  

7. Reports made to previous meetings of the Scrutiny Committee have shown 
steady reductions in the “debt” carried forward from 2002/03.  The process of 
closing the accounts is currently being finalised, but the final outturn is expected 
to be an overspend of £245,000 ( including the carried forward £582,000).  This 
is  0.7% of the budget and will be carried forward to the financial year 2004/05. 

8. The objective to keep expenditure within the social care budget has been a 
considerable challenge. It should be acknowledged how difficult this has been for 
all staff and for users and the public waiting for services. This pressure on older 
peoples services in particular will impact on the 2004/05 financial year. 

9. The key risk area of childrens agency placements has been identified as an issue 
in previous reports. This budget has naturally been particularly difficult to predict.   

10. Although there were only 27 children in such placements at the end of March 
2004, the total spend on this budget was £1.6miilion. The current cost of 
placement for an individual child ranges from £560 per week to £4,300 per week. 
In the last 3 months of the 2003/04 financial year 6 new placements have been 
agreed. This will obviously place pressure on the 2004/05 budget.  Childrens 
Services managers are already planning for some more flexibility within our own 
fostering service placements to meet childrens needs rather than more 
expensive options. 

Strategic Housing Budget 2003/04  

11. The 2003/04 budget for Strategic Housing is £1,247,000. In addition, an 
underspend of £191,000 has been carried forward from 2002/03. 

12. The projected end of year underspend to be carried forward to 2004/05 is 
£60,000 (after incorporating the 2002/03 underspend). It is not expected that 
there will be an underspend in future years.  The reason for the underspend in 
this year is the time taken to review services and recruit to posts within the new 
Strategic Housing function and also reflects the cautious approach taken in 
committing to expenditure in the first year following transfer. 

. Summary 

13. The Directorate’s aim to completely eradicate the “debt” brought forward on the 
Social Care budget has not proved possible, but to reduce the overspend to 
under 1% of the budget must be seen as an achievement. However, it should be 
noted that this is at a cost to service delivery, which will remain a challenge in 
2004/05. 

14. The County Treasurer will be reporting to Cabinet in July 2004 on the final overall 
budget outturn position, when the accounts are complete. 

20



 
SOCIAL CARE AND HOUSING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE       17TH JUNE, 2004  

Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Sue Alexander Head of Business Services on 01432 260069  

or Anne Silley, Finance Manager on 01432 260545 
   
 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

THAT the provisional final budget monitoring outturn for the  
2003/04 financial year be noted. 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

• None 

 

21



22



SOCIAL CARE & HOUSING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 17TH JUNE, 2004 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Stephanie Canham, Head of Social Care 
(Adults) on 01432 260320 

 
 

ScopingStudies1706040.doc  

 SCOPING WORK FOR IN-DEPTH INVESTIGATIONS 
INTO SERVICE AREAS 

Report By: Head of Social Care (Adults) 
 

Wards Affected 

 County-wide 

Purpose 

1. To agree an exploratory programme for the in-depth investigations into the provision of 
home care and supported housing for people with mental health problems. 

Financial Implications 

2. None identified at present. 

Background 

3. The Committee held an initial scoping day, which identified the following topics for in-depth 
review, reported to this Committee in April. 

• The provision of home care 

• Supported housing for people with mental health problems 

• Joint working in delivering Children’s services 

4. This Committee agreed that the investigation into joint working in delivering Children’s 
services be deferred, pending enactment of the Children’s Services Bill. 

Proposed Review Programme 

5. An outline programme of visits and fact-finding sessions is set out below. It is proposed that 
detailed scoping statements will be prepared in due course.  

 (A) PROVISION OF HOME CARE 

a)   Members Visits:   

• Work shadowing a Home Care and Reablement Assistant. 

b)   Member Information Sessions: 

•  Access to services:  

 - How individuals’ needs are identified 
-   Who is eligible for service 
-   What charges are made 

AGENDA ITEM 9

23



SOCIAL CARE & HOUSING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 17TH JUNE, 2004 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Stephanie Canham, Head of Social Care 
(Adults) on 01432 260320 

 
 

ScopingStudies1706040.doc  

• Commissioning Service:  

      -  The amount & type of service needed 
      -     What needs to change to meet demands 

• Quality Monitoring:  

     -   Performance Indicators 
        -  Monitoring arrangements, local & national 

• Managing Change:   

     -   Home Care modernisation plan 
       

c)      Membership Information: 

• Regular update of STARRS Project Plan progress. 

 

(B) SUPPORTED HOUSING PROVISION FOR PEOPLE WITH  MENTAL HEALTH 
PROBLEMS. 

 a)    Supporting people team deliver a presentation, setting out the    
  achievements to date and the challenges ahead. 

• During the last three years, £2.35 million of capital funding via the housing 
capital development programme and £1.3 million of new revenue funding via the 
Supporting People programme, has been invested in meeting the housing and 
housing-related support needs of people with mental health problems in 
Herefordshire.  

• In excess of 200 people who are patients of the statutory mental health service 
are in receipt of Supporting People services, enabling them to maintain and 
sustain their tenure in ordinary housing in the community.  

b)   Meeting with Mark Hemming, Service Manager – Integrated Mental Health 
Team and Rob Cunningham, Team Manager – Adult Mental Health Team 

• There is an effective partnership between strategic housing and the statutory 
mental health service.  A proposal has been put before the Partnership Board 
that strategic housing lead the development of a Mental Health Housing Plan. 

c) Meet with Co-Ordinator of the Own Home Scheme 

• An initiative to extend the opportunity for shared ownership to  
people with mental health problems in partnership with Advance Housing. 

 

 

 

24



SOCIAL CARE & HOUSING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 17TH JUNE, 2004 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Stephanie Canham, Head of Social Care 
(Adults) on 01432 260320 

 
 

ScopingStudies1706040.doc  

 HOUSING 

• Site Visits to meet service users, landlord and Mind Community Support Service 

 The capital schemes that have been delivered include:  

 Chatsworth Road 

• 4 units of high quality settled accommodation with floating support 

 Etnam Street 

• 6 units of high quality transitional supported Housing 

 HOUSING-RELATED SUPPORT SERVICES 
• Meet members of the Assertive Outreach & Carr Gomm Teams  

• Outreach services to people with serious, long- term mental health problems 
provided in Partnership with the Assertive Outreach Team to people who have 
found traditional mental health service provision unsuited to their needs. 

 MIND COMMUNITY SUPPORT SERVICE 

•  Meet service users, members of the Mind Management Team & Staff 

 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
 THAT the programme as outlined in the report be supported and the Director 
of Social Care and Strategic Housing authorised, following consultation with 
the Chairman, to prepare detailed scoping statements. 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

• None 

 

  

 

 

 

25



26


